

Wirral Met College

1Wirral Met College Logo 1

# Safeguarding, Protection and Promoting the Welfare of Children and Adults at Risk Policy and Procedure

Document status	
Document owner	Executive Assistant Principal, Student Support &
	Foundation Learning
Document author	Safeguarding Manager
Document type	Policy
Date of document	October 2023
Version number	19
Review requirements	Annual
Date of next review	October 2024
Approval body	Board
Publication	Staff Intranet/Website
Code	PO20

## Contents

Policy	4
Introduction	4
Definitions	5
Policy Statement	5
Supporting Students	6
Inter-Agency Working	8
Legal Framework	9
Monitoring and Review	9
Additional Policies and Procedures	9
Child/Adult at Risk Protection Procedure	11
How to deal with suspected/allegation of abuse	11
Designated Managers	13
Duties of Safeguarding Manager/Designated Managers receiving Record of Suspected/Allegations of abuse	14
Record Keeping	15
Support for Staff	16
Accessing Early Help Intervention (Under 18's) Procedure	16
Introduction	
	16
Introduction	16
Introduction Team Around the Family (Multi Agency Support/Level 3)	16 16 16
Introduction Team Around the Family (Multi Agency Support/Level 3) Team Around the Student (Single Agency/Level 2)	16 16 16 17
Introduction Team Around the Family (Multi Agency Support/Level 3) Team Around the Student (Single Agency/Level 2) Support for Staff	
Introduction Team Around the Family (Multi Agency Support/Level 3) Team Around the Student (Single Agency/Level 2) Support for Staff Managing Allegations/Concerns against members of staff Procedu	
Introduction Team Around the Family (Multi Agency Support/Level 3) Team Around the Student (Single Agency/Level 2) Support for Staff Managing Allegations/Concerns against members of staff Procedu Introduction	
Introduction Team Around the Family (Multi Agency Support/Level 3) Team Around the Student (Single Agency/Level 2) Support for Staff Managing Allegations/Concerns against members of staff Procedu Introduction Receiving an allegation or concern	
Introduction Team Around the Family (Multi Agency Support/Level 3) Team Around the Student (Single Agency/Level 2) Support for Staff Managing Allegations/Concerns against members of staff Procedu Introduction Receiving an allegation or concern Initial Assessment	
Introduction Team Around the Family (Multi Agency Support/Level 3) Team Around the Student (Single Agency/Level 2) Support for Staff Managing Allegations/Concerns against members of staff Procedu Introduction Receiving an allegation or concern Initial Assessment Low-level Concerns	
Introduction Team Around the Family (Multi Agency Support/Level 3) Team Around the Student (Single Agency/Level 2) Support for Staff Managing Allegations/Concerns against members of staff Procedu Introduction Receiving an allegation or concern Initial Assessment Low-level Concerns Enquiries Investigations and Disciplinary action	
Introduction Team Around the Family (Multi Agency Support/Level 3) Team Around the Student (Single Agency/Level 2) Support for Staff Managing Allegations/Concerns against members of staff Procedu Introduction Receiving an allegation or concern Initial Assessment Low-level Concerns Enquiries Investigations and Disciplinary action Referrals to Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS)	
Introduction Team Around the Family (Multi Agency Support/Level 3) Team Around the Student (Single Agency/Level 2) Support for Staff Managing Allegations/Concerns against members of staff Procedu Introduction Receiving an allegation or concern Initial Assessment Low-level Concerns Enquiries Investigations and Disciplinary action Referrals to Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) Allegations without foundation	

Whistleblowing and safeguarding	23
Risk Management Procedures	23
Introduction	23
Risk Assessment and Risk Management Plan	23
Confidentiality	24
Record Keeping	24
Support for Staff	24
Procedure for Dealing with the Death of a Student	25
Introduction	25
The Death of a Student on Site or in the Care of College Staff	25
The Death of a Student Outside of College	25
The Death of an ex-student	26
The Death of a Prospective Wirral Met College Student	26
Appendix 1 – Abuse, Specific & Other Specific Safeguarding Issues	27
Appendix 2 - Do's & Don'ts Staff Guidance	34
Appendix 3(a): Action Checklist for death of any current student	35
Appendix 3(b): Additional Action Checklist for death of a student on-site in the care of College staff	
Appendix 4	39
Appendix 5 Advice for staff following a death by suicide	40
Appendix 6 – Additional measures and considerations in the event of campus closures (e.g. due to further COVID-19 outbreaks).	42

## Policy Introduction

- This policy states the responsibilities of Wirral Met College in relation to the safeguarding, protection and promoting the welfare of students, specifically children, adults at risk and students who are vulnerable due to circumstances.
- Wirral Met College is committed to safeguarding, protection and promoting the welfare of children and adults at risk, recognises that it is everyone's responsibility and therefore expects all staff and volunteers to share this commitment.
- Informed by statutory guidance and recommendations, this document incorporates: Intent: creating a safe environment for students to aspire to and achieve their goals.

**Implementation**: raise awareness of issues with staff through ongoing training and reporting; responding to need and ensuring appropriate intervention is in place by working with local support and statutory agencies; learning through experience and supervision.

**Impact:** student retain their place in education, achieve their qualification and return to continue their education or progress to new opportunities. Section 6 outlines some impact measures.

- Safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children is defined by Working Together to Safeguard Children (2018) as:
  - o protecting children from maltreatment
  - preventing impairment of children's mental and physical health or development
  - ensuring that children grow up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe and effective care; and
  - o taking action to enable all children to have the best outcomes
- The 6 Principles of Adult Safeguarding set out in the Care Act 2014 that underpin safeguarding adults are:
  - Empowerment: People are supported and encouraged to make their own decisions and informed consent
  - Prevention: It is better to take action before harm occurs.
  - Proportionality: The least intrusive response appropriate to the risk presented.
  - $\circ$   $\;$  Protection: Support and representation for those in greatest need.

- Partnership: Services offer local solutions through working closely with their communities have a part to play in preventing, detecting and reporting neglect and abuse.
- Accountability: Accountability and transparency in delivering safeguarding.

#### Definitions

- Children are students who have not yet reached their 18<sup>th</sup> birthday but in the case of Special Educational Needs it is up to 25 years of age.
- An adult at risk of abuse or neglect is defined as someone over 18 who has needs for care and support, who is experiencing, or is at risk of, abuse or neglect and as a result of their care needs is unable to protect themselves. (Care Act 2014).
- A vulnerable student is a student who, due to their circumstances, may require safeguarding arrangements to be implemented e.g.. domestic/relationship abuse, under 18 and have caring responsibilities, child in care/care leaver, under 18 and estranged from family, young parent or young mum to be, student involved in offending behaviour, LGBT, students with learning difficulties/disabilities, unaccompanied asylum seekers.

The term student will be used, for ease, throughout this policy and procedure to cover the definitions outlined above.

• This policy applies to all students and staff in the College.

#### **Policy Statement**

- The Board of Governors is committed to and will approve and annually review policies and procedures with the aim of ensuring that Wirral Met College:
  - provides a safe environment for students in which to learn.
  - identifies students who are suffering, or likely to suffer, significant harm and provides child/ adult at risk procedures for reporting concerns.
  - identifies students under 18 who are in need of early help/support from other agencies to ensure their welfare and takes appropriate action.
  - takes appropriate action to promote and support the safety and welfare of students, at home, at College, in the community, online and in the work place.
  - has established procedures for reporting and dealing with allegations of abuse against members of staff
  - ensures the safe recruitment of staff in compliance with appropriate legislation.

- In developing its policies and procedures, the College, will take account of guidance issued by the Department for Education (DfE), Wirral Safeguarding Children Partnership, Wirral Safeguarding Adults Board and other relevant agencies, bodies and groups.
- All staff, including governors, agency staff and substantial contractors (such as Caterlink) will receive training to familiarise themselves with safeguarding and protection issues, their responsibilities and Wirral Met College policies and procedures which will be regularly updated. In addition, to provide staff with knowledge and skills to ensure effective safeguarding of children and adults at risk, safeguarding e-bulletins will be disseminated through email and staff meetings. The Be Safe Information Portal on the staff intranet is also in place and maintained.
- A member of the Senior Leadership Team will be nominated as the Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) with lead responsibility for safeguarding and protection issues. They will be assisted by the College Safeguarding Manager (CSM) and other managers, who have also received the appropriate training and are authorised to act on behalf of Wirral Met College.
- DSL, CSM and other Designated Managers will undertake higher level training to enable them to give advice and guidance, make decisions about safeguarding and protection issues and take appropriate action. Refresher training will take place at least every 2 years.
- The Board of Governors will receive an annual report which will review how safeguarding and protection duties have been discharged in line with statutory guidance: Keeping Children Safe in Education (September 2023).
- Referrals to the Integrated Front Door/Adult Social Care will, as far as is practicable, be made by the College Safeguarding Manager, Assistant Safeguarding Manager or another Designated Manager.
- College staff will not have a direct role in investigating safeguarding or protection issues personally, but will work with other agencies as appropriate.

#### **Supporting Students**

- The College recognises that students who are abused or witness violence are likely to have low self-esteem and may find it difficult to develop a sense of self-worth. They may feel helpless, humiliated and some sense of blame. The College may be the only stable, secure and predictable element in their lives.
- The College accepts that the behaviour of a student in these circumstances may range from that which is perceived to be normal to aggressive or withdrawn.
- The College will support all students by:

- ensuring the content of the curriculum includes social and emotional aspects of learning; through tutorials and other curriculum contexts, students are encouraged to talk about feelings and deal assertively with pressures, are listened to and know to whom they can turn for help and advice;
- providing students with a range of appropriate adults to approach if they are in difficulties; and ensuring that students are taught about safeguarding so that they 'recognise when they are at risk and how to get help when they need it,' supporting students' development in ways that will foster security, confidence and independence and encourage the development of selfesteem and self-assertiveness while not condoning aggression or bullying;
- ensuring a comprehensive curriculum response to online safety, enabling students to learn about the four areas of online risk, as follows:
  - **content**: being exposed to illegal, inappropriate, or harmful content, for example: pornography, fake news, racism, misogyny, self-harm, suicide, anti-Semitism, radicalisation, and extremism
  - contact: being subjected to harmful online interaction with other users; for example: peer to peer pressure, commercial advertising and adults posing as children or young adults with the intention to groom or exploit them for sexual, criminal, financial or other purposes
  - conduct: online behaviour that increases the likelihood of, or causes, harm; for example, making, sending and receiving explicit images (e.g. consensual and non-consensual sharing of nudes and semi-nudes and/or pornography, sharing other explicit images) and online bullying
  - commerce: risks such as online gambling, inappropriate advertising, phishing and or financial scams.
- Ensuring adequate filtering and monitoring systems are in place on the college network and devices to not only block harmful content but also alert appropriate staff to any attempts by students or staff to access inappropriate content, to enable an appropriate response (see Staff and Student ICT Usage Policies for details)
- liaising and working together with other support services and those agencies involved in safeguarding and promoting the welfare of students;
- ensuring that the curriculum will help students stay safe, recognise when they do not feel safe and identify who they might or can talk to. Support students to become more resilient to inappropriate behaviours towards them, risk taking behaviours and behaviours that they may be coerced into including grooming, sexting and harmful sexualised behaviour';
- having a behaviour policy that is aimed at supporting vulnerable students in the College, which enables students to know that some behaviour is unacceptable but that they are valued and not to be blamed for any abuse which has occurred;
- ensuring repeated hate incidents, e.g. racist, homophobic or gender- or disability-based bullying, are considered under Safeguarding procedures

and monitoring students who have been identified as having welfare or protection concerns and providing appropriate support;

- acknowledging the importance of 'contextual safeguarding', which considers wider environmental factors in a student's life that may be a threat to their safety and/or welfare (Working Together to Safeguard Children, 2018 and KCSIE 2023)
- ensuring sexual harassment and sexual violence is not tolerated and students are enabled to raise concerns and feel they will be listened to, taken seriously, supported accordingly and the incident investigated.
- liaising with a range of agencies that support the student such as Health Services, Wirral Social Care (both children and adults), Community Matters, Family Matters, Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services, Special Educational Support Services, Youth Justice Service, Prevent Merseyside & Channel Panel and the Educational Psychology Service.
- ensuring that when a student who is the subject of a Child Protection/Child in Need Plan leaves, their information is transferred to the new provider within 2 weeks and that the child's Social Worker is informed that the child has moved;
- acknowledging that a child that is looked after (CLA) or has been previously looked after by the Local Authority potentially remains vulnerable and all staff should have the skills, knowledge and understanding to keep the CLA and previously looked after children safe. It is important that all agencies work together and prompt action is taken on concerns to safeguard these children, who are a particularly vulnerable group;
- applying the Student Discipline and Progress Policy and Procedure as required and to consider where a student's poor behaviour is directly linked to their disability or learning difficulty;
- applying the Use of Reasonable Force Policy to ensure that if a student's behaviour is putting themselves or others at risk of physical harm, physical intervention is used only as a last resort and with minimal risk of causing harm to the individual.

#### Inter-Agency Working

- The College will develop and promote effective working relationships with other agencies, including agencies providing early help services to children, the police, and the integrated front door. Early help means providing support as soon as a problem emerges at any point in a child's life, from the foundation years through to the teenage years.
- The College will ensure that relevant staff members, mainly the College Safeguarding Manager and Assistant Safeguarding Managers, will participate in multi-agency meetings and forums, including initial child protection conferences/reviews, associated core groups, child in need meetings, care planning meetings to consider individual children and contribute to associated plans.

• The College will participate in safeguarding practice reviews, other reviews and file audits as and when required to do so by the Wirral Safeguarding Children Partnership. It will ensure that there is a clear process for gathering the evidence required for reviews and audits, and embed recommendations into practice and compile required actions within agreed timescales.

#### Legal Framework

This policy and procedure is driven by the following legislation and guidance:

- The Children Act 2004
- The Education Act 2002
- The Sexual Offences Act 2003
- Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006
- Working Together to Safeguard Children (July 2018)
- Keeping Children Safe in Education (September 2023)
- The Counter Terrorism & Security Act 2015
- The revised Prevent Duty 2015
- The Care Act 2014
- Domestic Abuse Act 2021
- Human Rights Act 1998
- Equality Act 2010
- Public Sector Equality Duty

#### **Monitoring and Review**

- The implementation of this policy will be reviewed on a termly basis through the safeguarding steering group and an annual basis in the form of a report to the Board of Governors.
- The policy and procedure will be approved on an annual basis by the Board of Governors and ratified by the Wirral Safeguarding Children Partnership.
- Safeguarding, Protection and Promoting the welfare of children and adults at risk, particularly the number of cases, types of issues presented and training compliance will be monitored regularly by the Board of Governors.

#### **Additional Policies and Procedures**

- a. Policy on Recruitment of Ex-Offenders
- b. Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure
- c. Storage and handling of Disclosures Policy
- d. Staff Development Policy
- e. Recruitment and Selection of Staff Policy and Procedure
- f. Policy and Procedure for Placing Students on Work Placement
- g. Data Protection Policy

- h. Health, Safety and Welfare Policy
- i. Student Anti Bullying Policy
- j. ICT Usage Policy Staff
- k. ICT Usage Policy Students
- I. Equality & Diversity Policy
- m. Guidance for Working with Young People and Adults at risk
- n. Students Social Media Guidance
- o. Staff Social Media Guidance
- p. Student Discipline and Progress Policy and Procedure
- q. Tutorial Policy
- r. Disciplinary Procedure (Staff)
- s. Fitness to Study Policy
- t. Use of Reasonable Force Policy
- u. Drugs Policy
- v. Safeguarding code of practice for Live-Streaming
- w. Taking part in live-streamed lessons a guide for students, parents & carers.

This Policy and Procedure has been ratified by Wirral Safeguarding Partnership Board, October 2023.

## Child/Adult at Risk Protection Procedure

All staff should recognise that students with special educational needs (SEN) and disabilities can face additional safeguarding challenges. These additional barriers and challenges can include:

- assumptions that indicators of possible abuse such as behaviour, mood and injury relate to the child's disability without further exploration;
- the potential for children with SEN and disabilities being disproportionally impacted by behaviours such as bullying, without outwardly showing any signs; and
- o communication barriers and difficulties in overcoming these barriers.

Staff also need to be aware that children can abuse other children. This is generally referred to as child on child abuse. Child on child abuse can take many forms. This can include, but is not limited to:

- bullying (including cyberbullying);
- o sexual violence and sexual harassment;
- physical abuse such as hitting, kicking, shaking, biting, hair pulling, or otherwise causing physical harm;
- o sexting
- o initiating/hazing type violence and rituals.

More information is provided under Appendix 1.

The College has a Student Anti-Bullying Policy in place to respond to initial child on child abuse. If an incident of child on child abuse has caused or is likely to cause significant harm, this includes physical assault, sexual harassment, sexual assault/violence, the following procedure needs to be instigated.

In all circumstances of student being at risk of or is likely to be at risk of signification harm the following procedures should also be instigated immediately.

For ALL types of suspected abuse/allegation this procedure must be instigated.

#### How to deal with suspected/allegation of abuse

• You must take the information seriously and deal with it quickly, with sensitivity and with respect for the student. Appendix 1 provides guidance about categories of abuse we are protecting against and other specific safeguarding issues such as radicalisation & extremism, criminal and sexual exploitation, child on child abuse, domestic abuse, sexual violence/harassment etc.

#### **Receive:**

- Listen carefully to what is being said and remain calm.
- Do not interview the student. Just let the student talk normally and without interruption.
- Keep questions to a minimum; just clarify what is being said, without pressure, to be sure you understand what the student is telling you.

- Avoid leading questions or comments, do not put words in the student's mouth or finish off sentences. Do not jump to conclusions. Remember the student may have learning difficulties.
- When the student is telling you things, clarify terms that may be open to interpretation such as frequently, sometimes, often, always, never, possibly, probably etc.
- Do not comfort the person physically or ask to see any physical signs, especially if this means moving or removing clothing.
- Don't be judgemental remember that you are **NOT** investigating the matter

#### **Reassure:**

- Reassure the student that by telling you, they have done the right thing and you hear what they are saying
- DO NOT promise confidentiality. Students who have sufficient maturity or capacity to consider matters concerning themselves have the same rights to professional confidence and confidentiality as adults, irrespective of their age. This includes the rights to have certain confidences kept from parents/carers. *The exception to this principle is the issue of safeguarding and protection of children and adults at risk.* You should make it clear to the student that you cannot guarantee confidentiality.

#### Respond:

- Inform the student that you must pass the information on, but only those that need to know about it will be told.
- Reassure them that they will be kept informed of all developments.

#### Record:

- Record the details using the students own words, verbatim if possible, even if this means using unsavoury language or swear words do not sanitise the words.
- Read the information back to them. This will help clarify the situation. This is particularly important to students who find reading difficult.
- You don't have to provide a copy of this record to the student; they can access this through other means at a later time.
- In addition, it is perfectly acceptable for you to include a separate statement of your professional judgement, any changes in behaviour you have witnessed and/or your opinion so long as you make sure these are clearly identified as such.
- You must contact the Safeguarding Manager/Designated Manager immediately, by phone.
- Once you have spoken to the Safeguarding Manager/Designated Manager you must record the information on the Safeguarding Referral Shield on the staff intranet (My Concern). Do not put any safeguarding information on ProMonitor, other than a brief comment indicating that a safeguarding referral has been made but omitting any further detail. -

• Appendix 3 provides further guidance about Do's and Don'ts when dealing with a safeguarding issue.

#### **Designated Managers**

The following Managers are Designated Managers and can advise and decide on matters of safeguarding and protection.

Designated managerSafeguarding KoleContactLorraine JonesMatters relating to students, safeguarding Manager0151 551 7032Dawn GriffithsMatters relating to students0151 551 7435Assistant SafeguardingMatters relating to students0151 551 7032Sarah WilsonMatters relating to students0151 551 7032Sarah WilsonMatters relating to students0151 551 7032Assistant SafeguardingMatters relating to students0151 551 7032Ste BaileyDesignated Safeguarding and protection.0151 7012Executive AssistantLead (DSL) with lead responsibility for safeguarding and protection incidents0151 551 7052Paul CrawfordGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613Paul CrawfordGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613Karen Christian Assistant Principal: Visitor Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional ServicesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7413To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available incidents0151 551 7417To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available incidents0151 551 7417Chris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents	Designated Manager		Contact
Safeguarding Managerstaff and processes.0790 401 6154Dawn GriffithsMatters relating to students0151 551 7435Assistant SafeguardingMatters relating to students0151 551 7035Assistant SafeguardingMatters relating to students0151 551 7035Assistant SafeguardingMatters relating to students0151 7012Ste BaileyDesignated Safeguarding0151 7012Executive AssistantLead (DSL) with lead07827 983 488Principal, Student Supportresponsibility for safeguarding and protection.0151 551 7952Kevin RobertsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694Paul CrawfordGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613Karen ChristianGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613Karen ChristianGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613Servicesincidents0151 551 7417Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant principal: STEAM & concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available tolowing managers can be contacted.0151 551 7417Phil JonesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Chris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance conce	Designated Manager	Safeguarding Role	
Dawn GriffithsMatters relating to students0151 551 7435Assistant SafeguardingMatters relating to students0151 551 7435ManagerSarah WilsonMatters relating to students0151 551 7035Assistant SafeguardingMatters relating to students0151 551 7035Assistant SafeguardingDesignated Safeguarding0151 7012Ste BaileyDesignated Safeguarding0151 7012Executive AssistantLead (DSL) with lead07827 983 488Principal, Student Supportresponsibility for safeguarding and protection.0151 551 7952Kevin RobertsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694Paul CrawfordGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613Karen ChristianGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613Karen ChristianGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613Servicesincidents0151 551 7417Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant prenticeshipGeneral advice and guidance incidents0151 551 7417To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available tolowing managers can be contacted.0151 551 7417Phil Jones Vice Principal incidentsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7411Vice Principal concerning protection incidents0151 551 741107848147403Kevin Williams concerning protection		•	
Assistant Safeguarding Manager07990592134Sarah Wilson Assistant Safeguarding ManagerMatters relating to students 078520009830151 551 7035 07852000983Ste Bailey Executive Assistant Principal, Student SupportDesignated Safeguarding responsibility for safeguarding and protection.0151 7012 07827 983 488Kevin RobertsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7952 07762 134 709Paul Crawford Campus ManagerGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694 07762 134 709Karen Christian Assistant Principal: Visitor Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional ServicesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07852 000 990Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant PoincidentsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07852 000 990Following managers can be contacted.General advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsPhil Jones Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsChris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 07848147403 incidentsKevin Williams Ceneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7411 07848147403 incidents		•	
ManagerSarah WilsonMatters relating to students0151 551 7035Assistant SafeguardingO7852000983ManagerDesignated Safeguarding0151 7012Executive AssistantLead (DSL) with lead07827 983 488Principal, Student Supportresponsibility for safeguarding and protection.0151 551 7052Kevin RobertsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694Paul CrawfordGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694Paul CrawfordGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694Karen ChristianGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613Assistant Principal: Visitor econormy, Health, Care and Public/Professional Services0151 551 7413Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant Principal: STEAM & following managers can be contacted.0151 551 7417Phil JonesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417Vice Principal vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417Vice Principal vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Vice Principal vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7411		Matters relating to students	
Sarah WilsonMatters relating to students0151 551 7035Assistant Safeguarding07852000983ManagerDesignated Safeguarding0151 7012Ste BaileyDesignated Safeguarding0151 7012Executive AssistantLead (DSL) with lead07827 983 488Principal, Student SupportGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7952Kevin RobertsGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7694Campus ManagerConcerning protection0762 134 709incidentsGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7613Varee Carpus ManagerGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7613Assistant Principal:Visitorconcerning protection07852 000 990Economy, Health, Care and Public/ProfessionalGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7417ServicesGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7417To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available0151 551 7417Toice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance incidents0151 551 7417Phil JonesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7417Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7417Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7411Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7411Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7411Vice Prin	•••		07990592134
Assistant Safeguarding ManagerO7852000983Ste Bailey Executive AssistantDesignated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) with lead0151 7012 07827 983 488Principal, Student SupportLead (DSL) with lead responsibility for safeguarding and protection.0151 551 7952 07827 983 488Kevin RobertsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7952Paul Crawford Campus ManagerGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694 07762 134 709Karen Christian Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional ServicesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613 07852 000 990Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant Principal: STEAM & following managers can be contacted.General advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsTo ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsChris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 07848147403 incidentsKevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 07848147403 incidents			
ManagerSte BaileyDesignated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) with lead0151 7012 07827 983 488 07827 983 488 responsibility for safeguarding and protection.Kevin RobertsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7952 0151 551 7952Paul CrawfordGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7644 07762 134 709Paul CrawfordGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7643 07762 134 709Karen Christian Assistant Principal: Visitor Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional Services0151 551 7613 07852 000 990Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant Principal: STEAM & following managers can be contacted.General advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07852 000 990To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available then the following managers can be contacted.0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsPhil Jones Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsChris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 0751 551 7611Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7411 0151 551 7411		Matters relating to students	
Ste BaileyDesignated Safeguarding0151 7012Executive AssistantLead (DSL) with lead07827 983 488Principal, Student Supportresponsibility for safeguarding and protection.0151 551 7952Kevin RobertsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694Paul CrawfordGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694Campus ManagerGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613Karen ChristianGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613Assistant Principal:Visitor incidents07852 000 990Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional ServicesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417Principal:STEAM & concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available then the following managers can be contacted.0151 551 7417Phil JonesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417Vice Principal vice PrincipalConcerning protection concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Vice Principal vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Vice Principal vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and gu			07852000983
Executive Assistant Principal, Student SupportLead (DSL) with lead responsibility for safeguarding and protection.07827 983 488Kevin RobertsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7952 concerning protection or762 134 709Paul CrawfordGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694 07762 134 709Karen Christian Assistant Principal: Visitor Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional ServicesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613 07852 000 990Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant Principal: STEAM & following managers can be contacted.General advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07852 000 990To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403 07848147403Phil Jones Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403Chris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 07848147403Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7411 0751 551 7411			
Principal, Student Supportresponsibility for safeguarding and protection.Kevin RobertsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7952 concerning protection 07762 134 709 07762 134 709 07852 000 990 incidentsKaren Christian Assistant Principal: Visitor Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional ServicesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidentsElla Tsui-Lau Assistant ApprenticeshipGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 concerning protection incidentsTo ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available then the following managers can be contacted.0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsPhil Jones Chris Carter Vice Principal Chris CarterGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 07848147403 incidentsKevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7411 0151 551 7411	,	<b>U U U</b>	
And protection.Kevin RobertsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7952 concerning protection 07762 134 709 07762 134 709 07762 134 709 incidentsPaul Crawford Campus ManagerGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694 07762 134 709 07762 134 709 07762 134 709 07762 000 990Karen Christian Assistant Principal: Visitor Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional ServicesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613 07852 000 990Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant Principal: STEAM & Apprenticeship To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available then the following managers can be contacted.0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsPhil Jones Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsChris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 0751 551 7611Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7411 0151 551 7611		. ,	07827 983 488
Kevin RobertsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7952Paul Crawford Campus ManagerGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694 07762 134 709Karen Christian Assistant Principal: Visitor ServicesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613 07852 000 990Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional ServicesGeneral advice and guidance incidents0151 551 7413 07852 000 990Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant Principal: STEAM & following managers can be contacted.General advice and guidance incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403 07848147403 incidentsPhil Jones Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403 0151 551 7417Chris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 07848147403 0151 551 7611Kevin Williams Chris CarterGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403 0151 551 7611	Principal, Student Support		
concerning protection incidentsPaul Crawford Campus ManagerGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694 07762 134 709Karen Christian Assistant Principal: Visitor Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional ServicesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613 07852 000 990Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant ApprenticeshipGeneral advice and guidance incidents0151 551 7417 07852 000 990To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available then the following managers can be contacted.0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsPhil Jones Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsChris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 07848147403 incidentsKevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7411 0751 551 7411		•	
incidentsPaul Crawford Campus ManagerGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694 07762 134 709 07762 134 709 07852 000 990 Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional Services0151 551 7613 07852 000 990 07852 000 990 0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsPhil Jones Vice Principal Chris Carter Vice Principal Chris CarterGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidentsChris Carter Vice Principal concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 07548147403 0151 551 7611 01551 7517Kevin Williams Ceneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7411 0151 551 7411	Kevin Roberts	v	0151 551 7952
Paul Crawford Campus ManagerGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7694 07762 134 709Karen Christian Assistant Principal: Visitor Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional ServicesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7613 07852 000 990Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant Principal: STEAM & ApprenticeshipGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07852 000 990To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403 0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsPhil Jones Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 0151 551 7417 07848147403 0151 551 7417Chris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 0151 551 7611Kevin Williams Chers Carter Concerning protection incidentsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7411 0151 551 7611		•	
Campus Managerconcerning protection incidents07762 134 709Karen ChristianGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7613Assistant Principal: Visitorconcerning protection incidents07852 000 990Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional Servicesincidents07852 000 990Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant ApprenticeshipGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417Principal: STEAM & ApprenticeshipGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available then the following managers can be contacted.0151 551 7417Phil Jones Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417Chris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Kevin Williams concerning protectionGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7411			
incidentsKaren ChristianGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7613Assistant Principal: Visitorconcerning protection07852 000 990Economy, Health, Careincidents07852 000 990and Public/Professionalincidents0151 551 7417ServicesElla Tsui-Lau AssistantGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7417Principal: STEAM &concerning protection0151 551 7417Apprenticeshipincidents0151 551 7417To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available0151 551 7417Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7417Vice Principalconcerning protection incidents0151 551 7417Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7411		v	
Karen ChristianGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7613 07852 000 990Assistant Principal: Visitorconcerning protection incidents07852 000 990Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional Servicesincidents0151 551 7413 07852 000 990Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant Principal: STEAM & ApprenticeshipGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 0151 551 7417To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available then the following managers can be contacted.0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsPhil Jones Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 07848147403 incidentsChris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 07848147403 incidentsKevin Williams concerning protectionGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7411 0151 551 7411	Campus Manager	•	07762 134 709
Assistant Principal: Visitor Economy, Health, Care and Public/Professional Servicesconcerning protection incidents07852 000 990Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant Principal: STEAM & ApprenticeshipGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available then the following managers can be contacted.0151 551 7417Phil Jones Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417Chris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Kevin Williams Concerning protectionGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7411			
Economy, Health, Care and Public/ProfessionalincidentsServicesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7417Principal: STEAM & ApprenticeshipGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7417To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available then the beignated Managers are not available then the following managers can be contacted.0151 551 7417Phil Jones Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsChris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 07848147403 0151 551 7611Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7411 0751 7517611		-	
and Public/Professional ServicesElla Tsui-Lau Assistant Principal: STEAM & ApprenticeshipGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available then the Designated Managers are not available then the following managers can be contacted.0151 551 7417Phil Jones Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417 07848147403Chris Carter Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 07848147403Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7411 0751 751 7611	•	•	07852 000 990
ServicesElla Tsui-Lau Assistant Principal: STEAM & ApprenticeshipGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7417ApprenticeshipincidentsincidentsTo ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available the event that the Designate advice and guidance the event that the Designate advice and guidance the event the event that the Designate advice and guidance the event advice and guidance0151 551 7611Vice Principal the event the event advic		incidents	
Ella Tsui-Lau Assistant Principal: STEAM & ApprenticeshipGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available the the Designated Managers are not available then the following managers can be contacted.0151 551 7417Phil Jones Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7417Vice Principal Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Vice Principal concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Kevin Williams concerning protectionGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7411			
Principal:STEAM & concerning protection incidentsApprenticeshipincidentsTo ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available then the Designated Managers are not available then the following managers can be contacted.Phil JonesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsVice Principalconcerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 07848147403Vice Principalconcerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 0715 551 7611Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 0151 551 7611Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7411 0151 551 7411			
ApprenticeshipincidentsTo ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not available then the Designated Managers are not available then the following managers can be contacted.Phil JonesGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7417 07848147403 incidentsChris CarterGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 07848147403Vice PrincipalConcerning protection incidents0151 551 7611 0751 751 7611Vice PrincipalGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7411 0751 7611Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7411 0151 751 7411		•	0151 551 7417
To ensure that advice is available at all times (eg during holiday periods), in the event that the Designated Managers are not availablethe event that the Designated Managers are not availablethen the following managers can be contacted.Phil JonesGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7417Vice Principalconcerning protection07848147403incidents0151 551 761107848147403Vice Principalconcerning protection0151 551 7611Vice Principalconcerning protection0151 551 7611Vice Principalconcerning protection0151 551 7411Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7411	•	•	
the event that the Designated Managers are not availablefollowing managers can be contacted.Phil JonesGeneral advice and guidanceOffice Principalconcerning protectionChris CarterGeneral advice and guidanceVice Principalconcerning protectionOffice Principalconcerning protectionUice Principalconcerning protectionIncidents0151 551 7611Vice Principalconcerning protectionIncidents0151 551 7611Vice Principalconcerning protectionIncidents0151 551 7411Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidanceConcerning protection0151 551 7411			
following managers can be contacted.Phil JonesGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7417Vice Principalconcerning protection07848147403incidentsincidents0151 551 7611Chris CarterGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7611Vice Principalconcerning protectionincidentsKevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7411			• • •
Phil JonesGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7417Vice Principalconcerning protection07848147403Chris CarterGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7611Vice Principalconcerning protection0151 551 7611Vice Principalconcerning protection0151 551 7611Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7411concerning protectionconcerning protection0151 551 7411	-	-	then the
Vice Principalconcerning protection incidents07848147403Chris CarterGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Vice Principalconcerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7411			
incidents         Chris Carter       General advice and guidance       0151 551 7611         Vice Principal       concerning protection       0151 551 7611         Kevin Williams       General advice and guidance       0151 551 7411         concerning protection       0151 551 7411         concerning protection       0151 551 7411		C C	
Chris CarterGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7611Vice Principalconcerning protection incidents0151 551 7611Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance concerning protection0151 551 7411	Vice Principal	•	07848147403
Vice Principal       concerning protection incidents         Kevin Williams       General advice and guidance concerning protection			
incidents Kevin Williams General advice and guidance 0151 551 7411 concerning protection		General advice and guidance	0151 551 7611
Kevin WilliamsGeneral advice and guidance0151 551 7411concerning protection	Vice Principal	concerning protection	
concerning protection		incidents	
	Kevin Williams	General advice and guidance	0151 551 7411
incidents		•	
		incidents	

Jan State St	g concerns about one of the above	managers then
the Principal should be o	contacted immediately.	
Is staff have safeguardir	ng concerns about the Principal the	n the matter
should be referred to the	e College's Chair of Governors thro	ugh the Clerk of
the Corporation		
Jo Henney	Safeguarding and protection	
Chair of Governors	concerns relating to the	07895177666
	Principal ONLY. Contact	
	through Lesley Venables,	
	Clerk to the Corporation.	

- The Board of Governors have decided that there should be no nominated Governor with specific responsibility for safeguarding issues. The Chair will assume this accountability on behalf of the Board as necessary.
- In the unlikely event that a Designated Manager is not contactable (i.e. evening time) the Duty Manager is empowered to exercise discretion and judgement in the prevailing circumstances and may make a referral to the Emergency Duty Team (EDT) or Police depending on the circumstances. (Follow guidance on the Staff Intranet (Safeguarding, Designated Managers section). You must inform the Safeguarding Manager or a Designated Manager, as soon as possible, on the following day in accordance with this policy and procedure.

# Duties of Safeguarding Manager/Designated Managers receiving Record of Suspected/Allegations of abuse

- Where possible, formal referrals will be done through the College Safeguarding Manager or another Designated Manager. In this section the term Designated Manager (DM) is used.
- The designated manager (DM) should request the information is recorded on My Concern as a concern, from the referrer as soon as possible after the initial contact and check that enough detail has been provided for a formal referral if needs be.
- The DM should ascertain whether or not the *student* has sufficient 'capacity' to be able to understand and make decisions about the next steps on their own behalf.
- A link to the Electronic Multi Agency Referral form (E-MARF) (for under 18's), is provided under Designated Managers section on the Safeguarding webpage on the staff intranet.
- In general, the DM should always discuss any concerns the college may have with the student's parents; they need to know why we are concerned about their child. They also need to be aware that the referral is being made and comment as

appropriate. However, if the DM believes that speaking to the student's parents would place them at greater risk or lead to loss of evidence for a police investigation, concerns will not be discussed with parents.

- If the student does not have the capacity to make decisions the DM may seek further advice from Integrated Front Door/Adult Social Care. Contact details are provided in Designated Managers section on the Safeguarding webpage on the staff intranet.
- If the DM decides that they must refer the disclosure, they should contact either the Integrated Front Door/Adult Social Care (if out of hours the Evening Duty Team) or the Police. The date and time of the contact, the duty officer's name and any case no./reference should be recorded. The E-MARF should then be completed and submitted. The DM should either act as the communication channel to the student or nominate the manager of the referring member of staff to arrange so. Where any communications with external agencies follow the initial referral, prompt feedback should be provided to the *student*.
- The DM should ensure that all actions taken in relation to the incident are recorded on My Concern.
- In the case where the disclosure or concern is made by a *student* against a member of staff, the DM should follow the procedure outlined in Managing allegations against staff members.
- In the case where the disclosure or concern is made by a *student* against another student (child on child abuse) the DM will need to consider if the Student Anti Bullying Policy and Procedure would be more appropriate in the first instance and perhaps the Student Discipline & Progress Policy or Fitness to Study Policy need to also be instigated and liaise with the appropriate College Manager. If the incident involves physical assault, sexual harassment, sexual abuse/violence, hate crime or places a student at risk of significant harm, advice will be sought from Integrated Front Door and/or the Police if appropriate and will take appropriate action to ensure the safety and welfare of all students involved, making associated referrals as required.
- Attendance at Strategy Meetings, Initial Child Protection Conference/review, Core Group Meetings or Child In Need Meetings, Care Planning will be the responsibility of the College Safeguarding Manager or another Designated Manager, who have received training, and are authorised to act on behalf of Wirral Met College.

#### **Record Keeping**

- Staff must not retain safeguarding information or record it on pro-monitor. It is very important that all information is secure. The college uses the software platform My Concern to manage its safeguarding records.
- Child Protection records will be kept until the individual's 25<sup>th</sup> birthday. Adult protection records will be retained for 8 years. Records relating to students with a looked after/care leaver status will be retained for 100 years.

• Under no circumstance should any safeguarding or protection related information be recorded on Pro-Monitor.

#### Support for Staff

- This policy and procedure is available to all staff via the staff intranet.
- Training is provided at induction, within probationary period and refreshed every three years, with regular e-bulletins and updates on a monthly basis.
- Dealing with an allegation of abuse can be particularly distressing. Staff who are affected as such can request support through their Line Manager, Safeguarding Manager or HR.
- Specific roles within the college i.e. Pastoral Support Mentors, Counsellors, Safeguarding Manager and Assistant Safeguarding Managers receive regular supervision sessions

# Accessing Early Help Intervention (Under 18's) Procedure

#### Introduction

Sometimes a student may give us cause for concern in matters relating to their welfare that is not a child protection issue. In these instances, your concerns should be discussed with the student and documented using the Safeguarding Referral Shield on the staff intranet (My Concern) software and discussed with the Safeguarding Manager. You must inform the student you are doing this.

#### Team Around the Family (Multi Agency Support/Level 3)

- On receipt of the concern the Safeguarding Manager will make a decision and take appropriate action and if thresholds are met the College Safeguarding Manager will contact the student/parents to discuss further.
- Completion of the Early Help Assessment Tool and associated assessment tools will be undertaken by the Safeguarding Manager or another appropriate member of staff. The Safeguarding Manager will assume the role of Lead Professional if/where appropriate.
- Attendance at Team Around the Family meetings will be the responsibility of the College Safeguarding Manager as much as is possible or another appropriate member of staff identified.

#### Team Around the Student (Single Agency/Level 2)

• In cases where the student's needs can be met through internal support mechanisms the Safeguarding Manager will instigate the Team Around the Student processes if appropriate.

#### Support for Staff

- This policy and procedure is available to all staff via the staff intranet.
- Training is provided at induction, within probationary period and refreshed every three years with regular e-bulletins and updates on a monthly basis.
- Recognising a concern with a student and the impact this could have could be upsetting to staff. Staff who are affected as such can request support through their Line Manager, Safeguarding Manager or HR.
- Specific roles within the college i.e. Pastoral Support Mentors, Counsellors, Safeguarding Manager and Assistant Safeguarding Managers receive regular supervision sessions

# Managing Allegations/Concerns against members of staff Procedure

These procedures apply to all staff (other than senior post holders) as well as to volunteers. The word "staff" is used for ease of description. Where the allegation/concern relates to the Principal or a senior post holder, then references to the "Principal" in this section should be replaced by the "Chair of Governors" and the disciplinary procedures for senior post holders used.

#### Introduction

- Because of their frequent contact with children and adults at risk, staff may have allegations of abuse or impropriety made against them. Wirral Met College recognises that such an allegation could be for a variety of reasons and that the allegation may or may not be true. Section 11 offers guidance on how staff can protect themselves against such allegations.
- Wirral Met College recognises that hasty or ill-informed decisions in connection with a member of staff can irreparably damage an individual's reputation, confidence and career. Therefore, those dealing with such allegations within Wirral Met College will do so with sensitivity; act in a careful, measured way; maintain an open mind and ensure that any investigation is thorough and not subject to delay.

#### Receiving an allegation or concern

- ٠
- Any member of staff who receives an allegation, or has a concern of their own, about the conduct of another member of staff within the context of safeguarding must report it immediately to a member of the Senior Leadership Team (Directors, Assistant/Vice/Deputy Principal or the Principal) or the Safeguarding Manager.

- The receiving manager will immediately inform the HR Director. The HR Director will make an initial assessment of the allegation/concern, in consultation with the Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) or Safeguarding Manager where necessary.
- The HR Director will create a concern on the My Concern database, linked to the student/s involved in the allegation. Due to the additional level of sensitivity of the situation, this record will not name the member of staff and will not contain any detail but will instead state 'Concern raised regarding a staff member. See DSL, Safeguarding Manager or HR Director for details'.
- See Record Keeping below for more information

#### **Initial Assessment**

- The HR Director should make an initial assessment of the allegation/concern on the basis of the information received, consulting with the DSL or Safeguarding Manager if necessary. The DSL may also consult with the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) if advice is required at this stage. Notwithstanding, the LADO **must** be informed if the member of staff is alleged to have met the following threshold:
  - behaved in a way that has harmed, or may have harmed, a student and/or
  - possibly committed a criminal offence against, or related to, a student; and/or
  - behaved toward a student or students in a way that indicates they may pose a risk of harm to children or adults at risk and/or;
  - behaved or may have behaved in a way that indicates they are unsuitable to work with children and/or adults at risk
    - this last bullet point includes behaviour that may have happened outside of college, that might make an individual unsuitable to work with children or adults at risk ('transferable risk')
- The initial assessment will need to consider:
  - whether the allegation meets the harms threshold above, or is a 'low level concern' (see below)
  - whether an investigation is required under the college Disciplinary Procedure and, if so, whether the member of staff should be suspended
- If the harms threshold is reached, the DSL or Safeguarding Manager must be informed, and they will determine:
  - Whether the matter should be referred to the police;
  - Whether the matter should be formally referred to the LADO
  - Whether the matter should also be referred to the Integrated Front Door
  - Any other actions necessary under the Safeguarding procedures

#### Low-level Concerns

- A low-level concern is any concern that a member of staff may have acted in a way that:
  - Is inconsistent with college 'Guidance for safe working practice with young people and adults at risk', including inappropriate conduct outside of work, and
  - DOES NOT meet the harms threshold
- Examples of such behaviour could include, but are not limited to:
  - Being over-friendly with students
  - Having favourites
  - Taking photographs of students on personal mobile phone or tablet
  - Humiliating a student (above definitions and examples taken from Keeping Children Safe in Education, 2023)
- Such behaviour can exist on a wide spectrum, from the inadvertent or thoughtless, or behaviour that may look to be inappropriate, but might not be in specific circumstances, through to that which is ultimately intended to enable abuse.
- Any such concerns must still be reported to a member of the Senior Leadership Team (see above) or the Safeguarding Manager
- If the initial assessment of the concern, by the HR Director, deems this to be a low-level concern then appropriate and proportionate steps will be taken to look into the matter and, where the concern is deemed to have merit, provide clear, informal guidance and support to the member of staff in question to ensure their future conduct falls within college expectations. More formal disciplinary action would only be necessary if the concern formed part of a wider pattern of concerns regarding the performance or conduct of the staff member in question.
- Low level concerns must still be recorded, in order to enable identification of any potential patterns of risk (see Record Keeping below)
- Low level concerns do not need to be referred to the LADO (although the LADO can still be consulted for advice if required)

#### **Enquiries Investigations and Disciplinary action**

- Enquiries led by the LADO or the police are not to be confused with internal, disciplinary enquiries by the College. Wirral Met College may be able to use the outcome of external agency enquiries as part of its own procedures. The safeguarding agencies, including the police, have no power to direct Wirral Met College to act in a particular way; however, Wirral Met College should assist the agencies with their enquiries.
- Wirral Met College shall consider holding in abeyance its own internal enquiries while the formal police or LADO investigations proceed; to do otherwise may prejudice the investigation. Wirral Met College would only suspend if it intended to conduct an internal investigation in accordance with the disciplinary procedure.

- If there is an investigation by an external agency, for example the police, Wirral Met College should normally be involved in, and contribute to, the inter-agency strategy discussions. Appropriate confidentiality will be maintained in the interests of the member of staff about whom the allegation is made.
- Subject to considerations of confidentiality and/or objections from the police or other investigating agency, Wirral Met College will:
  - inform the *student* and/or parent/carer that the investigation is taking place and what the likely process will involve.
  - inform the member of staff against whom the allegation/concern was made of the fact that the investigation is taking place and what the likely process will involve.
- If the allegation is against a member of staff who is employed by an external agency, the employing agency will be notified immediately and be involved in any subsequent processes.
- Any suspension, investigation or disciplinary action taken must follow the relevant college policy.
- .

#### Referrals to Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS)

- Referrals must be made to the DBS when both of the following conditions have been met:
  - Condition 1: The college withdraws permission for a member of staff to engage in regulated activity with children and/or vulnerable adults, or moves the member of staff to another area of work that isn't regulated activity.
    - (this includes situations where the college would have taken the above action but the person was re-deployed, resigned, retired, or left)
  - Condition 2: The college concludes that the member of staff has carried out one of the following:
    - engaged in relevant conduct in relation to children and/or adults. An action or inaction has harmed a child or vulnerable adult or put them at risk or harm or;
    - satisfied the harm test in relation to children and / or vulnerable adults. eg there has been no relevant conduct but a risk of harm to a child or vulnerable adult still exists, or
    - been cautioned or convicted of a relevant (automatic barring either with or without the right to make representations) offence

Version: 19 Status: Open Further information regarding relevant conduct, and how to make a referral to DBS, can be found at <u>Barring referrals - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)</u>

- This referral will be made by the HR Director or DSL.
- Consideration will also be given as to whether the Teaching Regulation Agency should also be informed.

#### Allegations without foundation

- Obviously false allegations may be indicative of problems of abuse elsewhere. The LADO and other agencies may act upon the information.
- Where a false allegation/concern has been identified:
  - the member of staff against whom the allegation was made will be informed orally and in writing that no further disciplinary or safeguarding action will be taken. Consideration should be given to offering counselling/support.
  - the persons involved in the allegation/concern will be informed of the outcome and the reasons
  - a report outlining the allegation and giving reasons for the conclusion that it had no foundation and confirming that the above action had been taken will be filed.
  - If an allegation were found to be malicious, this would be treated seriously and followed up appropriately according to the individual circumstances

#### **Record Keeping**

- All allegations and concerns of a safeguarding nature that relate to staff, including Low Level concerns, must be recorded on a centrally held spreadsheet which can only be accessed by the DSL, Safeguarding Manager, HR Director and Principal
- The HR Director will also create a record on the My Concern database, linked to the student/s involved in the allegation. Due to the additional level of sensitivity of the situation, this record will not name the member of staff and will not contain any detail but will instead state 'Concern raised regarding a staff member. See DSL, Safeguarding Manager or HR Director for details'.
- It is important that documents relating to an investigation are retained in a secure place, together with a written record of the outcome and, if disciplinary action is taken, details retained on the member of staff's personal and confidential file.
- All records relating to members of staff will be held in the HR department.
- If a member of staff is dismissed or resigns before the disciplinary process is completed, s/he should be informed about Wirral Met College's statutory duty to inform the Disclosure & Barring Service.

- Details of allegations following an investigation that are found to have been malicious or false should be removed from personnel records, unless the individual gives their consent for retention of the information.
- However, for all other allegations, i.e. substantiated, unfounded and unsubstantiated it is important that the following information is kept on the file of the person accused:
  - a clear and comprehensive summary of the allegation
  - details of how the allegation was followed up and resolved
  - a note of any action taken, decisions reached and the outcome i.e substantiated, unfounded or unsubstantiated
  - a copy provided to the person concerned, where agreed by local authority children's social care or the police, and
  - a declaration on whether the information will be referred to in any future reference.
- The purpose of the record is to enable accurate information to be given in response to any future request for a reference. It will provide clarification in cases where future DBS checks reveal information from the police about an allegation that did not result in a criminal conviction and it will help to prevent unnecessary reinvestigation if, as sometimes happens, an allegation re-surfaces after a period of time.
- Records of allegations of abuse (which meet the harms threshold) must be retained at least until the accused has reached normal pension age or for a period of 10 years from the date of the allegation if that is longer.
- Records of low level concerns must be retained for the duration of the individual's employment at the college.

#### **Monitoring Effectiveness**

• Where an allegation has been made against a member of staff, the Designated Safeguarding Lead should, at the conclusion of the investigation and any disciplinary procedures, consider whether there are any matters arising from it that could lead to the improvement of Wirral Met College's procedures and/or policies and/or which should be drawn to the attention of the Wirral Safeguarding Partnership. Consideration should also be given to the training needs of staff.

#### Protecting yourself from allegations

- All staff should follow the Guidance for Safe Working Practice with Young People and Adults at Risk, which has been written to help ensure the college is a safe environment for all students and staff. All staff will receive mandatory training regarding this guidance.
- All staff should follow the Safeguarding code of practice for live streaming and ensure that the taking part in live-streamed lessons: a guide for students, parents and carers is shared with appropriate parties.

# Whistleblowing and safeguarding

- Concerns regarding the conduct of a member of staff with regard to safeguarding, or regarding safeguarding practices within the College, will be dealt with in accordance with these procedures regardless of whether they fall within the technical definition of 'whistleblowing'
- Staff who raise such concerns are entitled to be informed as to how their concern has been dealt with, insofar as this is possible without breaching any necessary confidentiality.
- Staff may raise such concerns anonymously if they wish, but should note that this may limit the College's ability to investigate the matter or take action.
- Staff who believe their concern has not been dealt with appropriately may raise this within 10 working days of being informed of the outcome with the Principal or, in the event that the concern relates to the Principal, with the Chair of the Board of Governors.
- The aim of this process is to provide an internal mechanism for reporting, investigating and remedying any safeguarding concerns. In most cases individuals should not find it necessary to alert anyone externally (unless otherwise determined by the Designated Safeguarding Lead as part of the above process). However, the independent whistleblowing charity, Protect, operates a confidential helpline and has a list of prescribed regulators for reporting certain types of concern.

## **Risk Management Procedures**

#### Introduction

Where a *student* or potential *student* discloses information which suggests that a potential safeguarding risk needs to be considered or when staff become aware that a *student* may pose a potential safeguarding risk to other *students*, then the Safeguarding Manager, the College Manager of the appropriate area or other manager identified in this policy, should be informed. The information should also be recorded on the Safeguarding Referral Shield (My Concern) on the staff intranet.

#### **Risk Assessment and Risk Management Plan**

- The circumstances of the potential risk will be investigated normally by the Safeguarding Manager or a person nominated by the Safeguarding Manager. If the *student* is deemed to pose a risk then a risk assessment will be undertaken and a risk management plan will be devised and implemented where appropriate.
  - All Risk Management plans will be discussed with and authorised by the Designated Safeguarding Lead. In the case of criminal convictions the College Manager for the curriculum area will also be involved.

- b. Where possible the risk assessment and risk management plan will be agreed between the College and the *student*, if appropriate the parent/carer of the student and any relevant agencies or support services e.g. Social Care, CAMHS, Youth Justice Service, Probation Service, Sexual Offenders Registration Unit.
- c. The risk management plan may contain conditions which the student must adhere to as a condition of enrolment or continuation of study. Refusal to enrol or a decision to exclude a *student* on the basis of a safeguarding matter should only be on the basis of failure to observe conditions applied, or because the risk assessment process has been unable to establish control measures which can adequately reduce the level of risk. Any decision to refuse enrolment or to exclude must be done within the appropriate College procedures
- d. Risk Management Plans will be in place for an academic year and will be reviewed on a termly basis or as required/updates.
- That a *student* or potential *student* may declare or disclose circumstances that indicate a potential risk should not prejudice the normal enrolment process on the basis of academic suitability and selection, or continuation on a course if already undergoing study.

#### Confidentiality

As for all students, conditions of privacy, confidentiality and data protection should be observed at all times. Involvement of staff should be on a "need to know" basis sufficient to assess and manage the risk(s). All information will be stored securely with the Safeguarding Manager. Under no circumstances should information be recorded on Pro Monitor.

#### **Record Keeping**

- The risk assessment and management plan will usually be for no longer than an academic year. It will be recorded and be subject to review when specified in the plan, if/when other information becomes available or termly.
- Staff must not retain safeguarding information or record it on pro-monitor. It is very important that all information is secure. The college uses the software platform My Concern to manage its safeguarding records.
- Safeguarding records will be kept up to the 25<sup>th</sup> birthday for children and for 8 years for adults and will then be destroyed.

#### Support for Staff

- This policy and procedure is available to all staff via the staff intranet.
- Training is provided at induction, within probationary period and refreshed every three years with regular e-bulletins and updates on a monthly basis.

• Being exposed to information related to offending behaviour can be particularly distressing. Staff who are affected as such can request support through their Line Manager, Safeguarding Manager or HR.

### Procedure for Dealing with the Death of a Student

#### Introduction

These procedures aim to ensure that support is provided to the immediate family, where appropriate, and to staff and students of the College, where affected. It also aims to provide a set of procedures for staff to follow when dealing with any death of a student. Individuals using this policy should see it as a minimum guide to help them deal with the situation; it should not restrict their actions as each event will be different. Nevertheless, there is a need to observe legalities, and a need to protect the interests of the College in cases where negligence might be alleged.

#### The Death of a Student on Site or in the Care of College Staff

- On the first discovery or notification of a death on College premises or while a student is in the care of College staff:
- If a body is discovered by any college employee or the discovery is reported to any college employee, the following action must be taken:
  - a) Secure the area and ensure that no one is allowed to enter the area.
  - b) Inform the Principal's office which will inform the Police
  - c) Summon support from the Facilities team to maintain a secure environment
  - d) On no account should the body be touched or moved and no action other than that outlined above should be taken without direction from the Police.
  - e) Record details of who found the body, at what time, details of who was at the scene at time of discovery, and when the deceased was last seen alive (if known).
  - f) A College manager or the member of staff in charge of an off-site group should take charge of the immediate incident until the Police arrive.
- The Principal's office will also inform the Designated Safeguarding Lead, who will take the lead in ensuring all necessary actions in Appendix 4 are taken.

#### The Death of a Student Outside of College

- Information about a student death may enter the College from a variety of possible sources and arrive on the desk of any member of the academic or support staff. The report of death may come from someone who says they are a relative or friend, or via a telephone call. Obviously, it is important to be confident that the report is true before taking any action. Whether or not the report is true, it would be insensitive to contact the student's home to verify. However, discrete enquiries will need to be made to try and corroborate the story from a reliable source.
- Once the death is confirmed, the Designated Safeguarding Lead will take the lead in ensuring all necessary actions in Appendix 4 are taken.

#### The Death of an ex-student

Procedure for a student not enrolled but who may have attended in the last three years:

- Verification of death.
- The Assistant Principal MIS should be informed, they will ensure all records relating to the learner are archived appropriately and no further correspondence sent to the deceased. Also to include Finance,
- Learning Resource Centre, Additional Learning Support, Pastoral Support Mentors etc.
- The relevant Curriculum Manager should be informed who will inform relevant staff and if appropriate, learners who may have known the learner. Curriculum also to ensure that any locally held records/letters etc are sent to the Assistant Principal MIS for appropriate archiving
- The Director of Marketing should be informed who will deal with any press requests.

#### The Death of a Prospective Wirral Met College Student

Procedure for a prospective student who has applied for a Wirral Metropolitan College course.

- Verification of death.
- The Director of Student Services will ensure all admissions records relating to the learner are archived appropriately and no further correspondence sent to the deceased.
- The Assistant Principal MIS should be informed, they will also ensure all records relating to the learner are archived appropriately and no further correspondence sent to the deceased. Also to include Finance, Additional Learner Support, Pastoral Support Mentors etc.
- The relevant course staff should be informed who will ensure any local records/letters are sent to the Assistant Principal -MIS for appropriate archiving.

# Appendix 1 – Abuse, Specific & Other Specific Safeguarding Issues

(Taken from Keeping Children Safe in Education: Statutory Guidance September 2023)

#### Indicators of abuse and neglect (under 18's)

**Abuse**: a form of maltreatment of a child. Somebody may abuse or neglect a child by inflicting harm or by failing to act to prevent harm. Harm can include ill treatment that is not physical as well as the impact of witnessing ill treatment of others. This can be particularly relevant, for example, in Ireaiotn to the impact on children of all forms of domestic abuse. Children may be abused in a family or in an institutional or community setting by those known to them or, more rarely, by others. Abuse can take place wholly online, or technology may be used to facilitate offline abuse. Children may be abused by an adult or adults or by another child or children.

- **Physical abuse**: a form of abuse which may involve hitting, shaking, throwing, poisoning, burning or scalding, drowning, suffocating or otherwise causing physical harm to a child. Physical harm may also be caused when a parent or carer fabricates the symptoms of, or deliberately induces, illness in a child.
- Emotional abuse: the persistent emotional maltreatment of a child such as to • cause severe and adverse effects on the child's emotional development. It may involve conveying to a child that they are worthless or unloved, inadequate, or valued only insofar as they meet the needs of another person. It may include not giving the child opportunities to express their views, deliberately silencing them or 'making fun' of what they say or how they communicate. It may feature age or developmentally inappropriate expectations being imposed on children. These may include interactions that are beyond a child's developmental capability as well as overprotection and limitation of exploration and learning, or preventing the child from participating in normal social interaction. It may involve seeing or hearing the ill-treatment of another. It may involve serious bullying (including cyberbullying), causing children frequently to feel frightened or in danger, or the exploitation or corruption of children. Some level of emotional abuse is involved in all types of maltreatment of a child, although it may occur alone.
- Sexual abuse: involves forcing or enticing a child or young person to take part in sexual activities, not necessarily involving a violence, whether or not the child is aware of what is happening. The activities may involve physical contact, including assault by penetration (for example rape or oral sex) or nonpenetrative acts such as masturbation, kissing, rubbing and touching outside of clothing. They may also include non-contact activities, such as involving children in looking at, or in the production of, sexual images, watching sexual activities, encouraging children to behave in sexually inappropriate ways, or grooming a child in preparation for abuse. Sexual abuse can take place online, and technology can be used to facilitate offline abuse. (Sexual abuse is not solely perpetrated by adult males. Women can also commit acts of sexual abuse, as can other children. The sexual abuse of children by other children is

a specific safeguarding issue in education and all staff should be aware of it and of the college's policy and procedures for dealing with it.

• **Neglect**: the persistent failure to meet a child's basic physical and/or psychological needs, likely to result in the serious impairment of the child's health or development. Neglect may occur during pregnancy, for example, as a result of maternal substance abuse. Once a child is born, neglect may involve a parent or carer failing to: provide adequate food, clothing and shelter (including exclusion from home or abandonment); protect a child from physical and emotional harm or danger; ensure adequate supervision (including the use of inadequate care-givers); or ensure access to appropriate medical care or treatment. It may also include neglect of, or unresponsiveness to, a child's basic emotional needs.

The following forms and patterns of abuse against adults are taken from Wirral Adult Safeguarding Policy and Procedures: (adults at risk)

- **Physical abuse** including assault, hitting, slapping, pushing, misuse of medication, restraint or inappropriate physical sanctions.
- **Domestic abuse** including psychological, physical, sexual, financial, emotional abuse; so called 'honour' based violence and FGM (female genital mutilation), forced marriage as well as coercive and controlling behaviour in intimate or familial relationships.
- Sexual abuse including rape, indecent exposure, sexual harassment, inappropriate looking or touching, sexual teasing or innuendo, sexual photography, subjection to pornography or witnessing sexual acts, indecent exposure and sexual assault or sexual acts to which the adult has not consented or was pressured into consenting.
- **Psychological abuse** including emotional abuse, threats of harm or abandonment, deprivation of contact, humiliation, blaming, controlling, intimidation, coercion, harassment, verbal abuse, cyber bullying, isolation or unreasonable and unjustified withdrawal of services or supportive networks.
- Financial or material abuse including theft, fraud, internet scamming, coercion in relation to an adult's financial affairs or arrangements, including in connection with wills, property, inheritance or financial transactions, or the misuse or misappropriation of property, possessions or benefits.
- **Modern slavery** encompasses slavery, human trafficking, forced labour and domestic servitude. Traffickers and slave masters use whatever means they have at their disposal to coerce, deceive and force individuals into a life of abuse, servitude and inhumane treatment.
- **Discriminatory abuse** including forms of harassment, slurs or similar treatment; because of race, gender and gender identity, age, disability, sexual orientation, hate crime or religion
- Organisational abuse including neglect and poor care practice within an institution or specific care setting such as a hospital or care home, for example, or in relation to care provided in one's own home. This may range from one off incidents to on-going ill-treatment. It can be through neglect or poor professional practice as a result of the structure, policies, processes and practices within an organisation.

- **Neglect and acts of omission** including ignoring medical, emotional or physical care needs, failure to provide access to appropriate health, care and support or educational services, the withholding of the necessities of life, such as medication, adequate nutrition and heating
- Self-neglect this covers a wide range of behaviour neglecting to care for one's personal hygiene, health and surroundings and includes behaviour such as hoarding. A decision on whether a response is required under safeguarding will depend on the adult's ability to protect themselves by controlling their own behaviour. There may come a point when they are no longer able to do this without external support.
- Radicalisation is comparable to other forms of exploitation, such as grooming and child sexual exploitation. Radicalisation's aim is to attract people to another way of reasoning, inspire new recruits and embed extreme views and persuade vulnerable people of another cause's legitimacy. This may be through face-to face encounters or through social media. There are a number of factors that may make a person susceptible to exploitation by violent extremists. None of these factors should be considered in isolation but in conjunction with the individual circumstances.

# **Key Specific Safeguarding Issues (***Taken from Keeping Children Safe in Education: Statutory Guidance September 2023*)

All staff should have an awareness of safeguarding issues that can put children at risk of harm. Behaviours linked to issues such as drug taking or alcohol misuse, deliberately missing education, serious violence (including that linked to county lines), radicalisations and and consensual and non-consensual sharing of nude and semi-nude images and/or videos can be signs that children are at risk. Other safeguarding issues all staff should be aware of include:

#### Child-on-child abuse

All staff should be aware that children can abuse other children (often referred to as child-on-child abuse), and that it can happen both inside and outside of school or college and online. All staff should be clear as to the school or college's policy and procedures with regard to child-on-child abuse and the important role they have to play in preventing it and responding where they believe a child may be at risk from it.

All staff should understand that even if there are no reports in their schools or colleges it does not mean it is not happening, it may be the case that it is just not being reported. As such it is important if staff have any concerns regarding child-on-child abuse they should speak to their designated safeguarding lead (or a deputy).

It is essential that all staff understand the importance of challenging inappropriate behaviours between children, many of which are listed below, that are abusive in nature. Downplaying certain behaviours, for example dismissing sexual harassment as "just banter", "just having a laugh", "part of growing up" or "boys being boys" can lead to a culture of unacceptable behaviours, an unsafe environment for children and in worst case scenarios a culture that normalises abuse leading to children accepting it as normal and not coming forward to report it.

Child-on-child abuse is most likely to include, but may not be limited to:

• bullying (including cyberbullying, prejudice-based and discriminatory bullying)

• abuse in intimate personal relationships between children (sometimes known as 'teenage relationship abuse')

• physical abuse such as hitting, kicking, shaking, biting, hair pulling, or otherwise causing physical harm (this may include an online element which facilitates, threatens and/or encourages physical abuse)

• sexual violence such as rape, assault by penetration and sexual assault; (this may include an online element which facilitates, threatens and/or encourages sexual violence) sexual harassment such as sexual comments, remarks, jokes and online sexual harassment, which may be standalone or part of a broader pattern of abuse

• causing someone to engage in sexual activity without consent, such as forcing someone to strip, touch themselves sexually, or to engage in sexual activity with a third party

• consensual and non-consensual sharing of nude and semi-nude images and/or videos (also known as sexting or youth produced sexual imagery)

• upskirting which typically involves taking a picture under a person's clothing without their permission, with the intention of viewing their genitals or buttocks to obtain sexual gratification, or cause the victim humiliation, distress, or alarm, and

• initiation/hazing type violence and rituals (this could include activities involving harassment, abuse or humiliation used as a way of initiating a person into a group and may also include an online element)

#### Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) and Child Criminal Exploitation (CCE)

Both CSE and CCE are forms of abuse that occur where an individual or group takes advantage of an imbalance in power to coerce, manipulate or deceive a child into taking part in sexual or criminal activity, in exchange for something the victim needs or wants, and/or for the financial advantage or increased status of the perpetrator or facilitator and/or through violence or the threat of violence. CSE and CCE can affect children, both male and female and can include children who have been moved (commonly referred to as trafficking) for the purpose of exploitation.

#### Child Criminal Exploitation (CCE)

Some specific forms of CCE can include children being forced or manipulated into transporting drugs or money through county lines, working in cannabis factories, shoplifting or pickpocketing. They can also be forced or manipulated into committing vehicle crime or threatening/committing serious violence to others.

Children can become trapped by this type of exploitation as perpetrators can threaten victims (and their families) with violence, or entrap and coerce them into debt. They may be coerced into carrying weapons such as knives or begin to carry a knife for a sense of protection from harm from others. As children involved in criminal exploitation often commit

crimes themselves, their vulnerability as victims is not always recognised by adults and professionals, (particularly older children), and they are not treated as victims despite the harm they have experienced. They may still have been criminally exploited even if the activity appears to be something they have agreed or consented to.

It is important to note that the experience of girls who are criminally exploited can be very different to that of boys. The indicators may not be the same, however professionals should be aware that girls are at risk of criminal exploitation too. It is also important to note that both boys and girls being criminally exploited may be at higher risk of sexual exploitation

#### Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE)

CSE is a form of child sexual abuse. Sexual abuse may involve physical contact, including assault by penetration (for example, rape or oral sex) or non penetrative acts such as masturbation, kissing, rubbing, and touching outside clothing. It may include non-contact activities, such as involving children in the production of sexual images, forcing children to look at sexual images or watch sexual activities, encouraging children to behave in sexually inappropriate ways or grooming a child in preparation for abuse including via the internet.

CSE can occur over time or be a one-off occurrence, and may happen without the child's immediate knowledge e.g. through others sharing videos or images of them on social media

CSE can affect any child, who has been coerced into engaging in sexual activities. This includes 16 and 17 year olds who can legally consent to have sex. Some children may not realise they are being exploited e.g. they believe they are in a genuine romantic relationship

#### **Domestic Abuse**

Domestic abuse can encompass a wide range of behaviours and may be a single incident or a pattern of incidents. That abuse can be, but is not limited to, psychological, physical, sexual, financial or emotional. Children can be victims of domestic abuse. They may see, hear, or experience the effects of abuse at home and/or suffer domestic abuse in their own intimate relationships (teenage relationship abuse). All of which can have a detrimental and long-term impact on their health, wellbeing, development, and ability to learn.

#### Serious violence

All staff should be aware of indicators, which may signal that children are at risk from, or are involved with serious violent crime. These may include increased absence from college, a change in friendships or relationships with older individuals or groups, a significant decline in performance, signs of self-harm or a significant change in wellbeing, or signs of assault or unexplained injuries. Unexplained gifts or new possessions could

also indicate that children have been approached by, or are involved with, individuals associated with criminal networks or gangs and may be at risk of criminal exploitation.

All staff should be aware of the range of risk factors which increase the likelihood of involvement in serious violence, such as being male, having been frequently absent or permanently excluded from school, having experienced child maltreatment and having been involved in offending, such as theft or robbery.

#### Female Genital Mutilation

Whilst all staff should speak to the designated safeguarding lead (or deputy) with regard to any concerns about female genital mutilation (FGM), there is a specific legal duty on teachers. If a teacher, in the course of their work in the profession, discovers that an act of FGM appears to have been carried out on a girl under the age of 18, the teacher must report this to the police. (The College Safeguarding Manager will support you with this)

#### **Mental Health**

All staff should also be aware that mental health problems can, in some cases, be an indicator that a child has suffered or is at risk of suffering abuse, neglect or exploitation.

Only appropriately trained professionals should attempt to make a diagnosis of a mental health problem. Education staff however, are well placed to observe children day-to-day and identify those whose behaviour suggests that they may be experiencing a mental health problem or be at risk of developing one.

Where children have suffered abuse and neglect, or other potentially traumatic adverse childhood experiences, this can have a lasting impact throughout childhood, adolescence and into adulthood. It is key that staff are aware of how these children's experiences, can impact on their mental health, behaviour and education.

If staff have a mental health concern about a child that is also a safeguarding concern, immediate action should be taken, by speaking to the designated safeguarding lead or a deputy.

Please contact the Mental Health and Wellbeing Team, via the Additional Learning Support department, for further guidance and support.

#### **Preventing radicalisation**

Children are vulnerable to extremist ideology and radicalisation. Similar to protecting children from other forms of harms and abuse, protecting children from this risk should be a part of a schools' or colleges' safeguarding approach.

• Extremism is the vocal or active opposition to our fundamental values, including democracy, the rule of law, individual liberty and the mutual respect and tolerance of different faiths and beliefs. This also includes calling for the death of members of the armed forces.

- Radicalisation refers to the process by which a person comes to support terrorism and extremist ideologies associated with terrorist groups.
- Terrorism is an action that endangers or causes serious violence to a person/people; causes serious damage to property; or seriously interferes or disrupts an electronic system. The use or threat must be designed to influence the government or to intimidate the public and is made for the purpose of advancing a political, religious or ideological cause.

There is no single way of identifying whether a child is likely to be susceptible to an extremist ideology. Background factors combined with specific influences such as family and friends may contribute to a child's vulnerability. Similarly, radicalisation can occur through many different methods (such as social media or the internet) and settings (such as within the home).

However, it is possible to protect vulnerable people from extremist ideology and intervene to prevent those at risk of radicalisation being radicalised. As with other safeguarding risks, staff should be alert to changes in children's behaviour, which could indicate that they may be in need of help or protection. Staff should use their judgement in identifying children who might be at risk of radicalisation and act proportionately which may include the designated safeguarding lead (or deputy) making a Prevent referral.

The college's designated safeguarding lead (and any deputies) are aware of local procedures for making a Prevent referral

#### **Other Additional Safeguarding Concerns:**

- Child abduction and community safety incidents
- Children and the court system
- Children missing from education
- Children with family members in prison
- Cybercrime
- Relationship Abuse
- Homelessness
- Modern Slavery and the National Referral Mechanism
- Honour Based Abuse
- Forced Marriage

# Any concerns need to be documented using the Safeguarding Referral Shield on the staff intraner (My Concern) and the Safeguarding Manager or other Designated Manager contacted immediately.

For further information:

www.wirralsafeguarding.co.uk

If you have concerns about a child or young person contact: 0151 606 2008

# Appendix 2 - Do's & Don'ts Staff Guidance

# If you have concerns regarding a student, or a student discloses their concerns to you, try to remember the following Do's and Don'ts

#### DO

- Listen to the student carefully and take what is said seriously
- Watch and notice any changes in behaviour
- Re-assure the student: let them know what has happened is not their fault
- Reach agreement with the student about what happens next, they should be in control
- Tell the student what YOU are going to do next
- Watch your reactions & body language
- ASAP AFTER talking, record what the student has said, using their words, on the Safeguarding Referral Shield (My Concern) software.
- Try not to touch or cuddle the student who is talking to you it may trigger unwanted reactions or emotions
- Refer this to your Safeguarding Manager or another Designated Manager immediately.

#### DON'T

- Don't interrogate. Evidence could be lost if you prompt the student or put words into the student's mouth.
- Don't show anger towards the accused person. The student may have mixed emotions about this person and a sense of loyalty. They may want the abuse to stop but may not want to be separated from the person who could be their prime carer.
- Don't promise confidentiality. The Safeguarding, Protection of Children and Adults at Risk Policy & Procedures do not allow us to keep disclosures confidential.
- Don't make false promises that you may not be able to keep. Reassure the student that they have done the right thing but don't assume that the 'abuser' will be punished or imprisoned, as this may not happen.
- Don't forget that there may be other children involved that we may not know about and could be affected by this disclosure; we have a duty towards them too.
- Don't assume that someone else knows and will help you must act.

Don't let the matter go without reporting it, or discussing it with the Safeguarding Manager or another Designated Manager.

# Appendix 3(a): Action Checklist for death of any current student

Student name:

Student number:

Action to be Taken	Responsibility	Timescale	Initials when complete	Date
Inform Chair of Governors	Principal	As soon as death is confirmed		
Inform relevant Curriculum Manager, Maths and English Managers	Executive Assistant Principal: Student Support	As soon as death is confirmed and (if relevant) Police agree information can be shared. This would normally be after the next of kin has been informed.		
Inform relevant staff and fellow students (to include relevant ALS, Maths and English Tutors, Pastoral Support Mentors, etc. who may have worked with the student, also consider student finance if the student received vulnerable bursary payments)	Curriculum Manager; Maths and English Managers, EAP: Student Support	As above (Accept that some students may talk to the press so ensure that they receive only factual information not speculation.)		

Send letter of condolence to the family/next of kin	Principal	As soon as is deemed appropriate.
Ascertain funeral arrangements and decide who/if the College will be represented formally.	Curriculum Manager	Once funeral date and details are released
<ul> <li>Ensure all records relating to the student are amended appropriately and no further correspondence sent to the deceased. To include:</li> <li>Registers</li> <li>Pro-Solution</li> <li>ProMonitor</li> <li>Automated texts/letters</li> </ul>	Assistant Principal: MIS	As soon as death is confirmed.
Ensure any outstanding financial issues between the student and the college are dealt with appropriately	Head of Finance	As soon as death is confirmed
Ensure any outstanding library loans are dealt with appropriately	LRC Manager	As soon as death is confirmed
Inform any relevant work placement provider/employer/sub-contract provider.	College Manager	As soon as death is confirmed and (if relevant) Police agree information can be shared.
Agree appropriate bereavement counselling or informal emotional support for students from Counsellors/Pastoral Support Mentors	ALS Manager; Safeguarding Manager	As soon as death is confirmed

Ensure any belongings such as contents of locker are returned to student's family	Director of Estates	After funeral has taken place.	
Offer emotional support to affected staff	Relevant Managers; Director of HR	As soon as death is confirmed	
Be aware of press interest, if applicable	Director of Marketing in liaison with Principal	As necessary	
Delete any marketing/promotional materials featuring the student, to ensure they are not used in the future	Director of Marketing	As soon as death is confirmed	

# Appendix 3(b): Additional Action Checklist for death of a student on-site or in the care of College staff.

Action to be Taken	Responsibility	Timescale	Initials when complete	Date
Liaise with police and coroner's office (if required)	Principal	Immediately		
Liaise with the Police to ensure the relevant access / security is provided if necessary	Director of Facilities	As instructed by Police		
Arrange for any remedial action e.g. cleaning needed once the Police provide permission for such action				
Arrange for any reports under RIDDOR to be sent to the HSE if necessary, and lead any Health and Safety investigation deemed appropriate by the Principal	Director of Facilities	As appropriate to circumstances		
Decide what, if any, form of internal investigation needs to be implemented and who will lead this.	Principal / Health and Safety Manager	As appropriate to circumstances		
Approve press releases if appropriate (in collaboration with Police press officer where necessary)	Principal (with Director of Marketing)	As appropriate to circumstances		

# Appendix 4

#### Guidance for teaching staff addressing a class about a death

**Note:** This is not intended to be a script for talking with students. An address will need to be adapted depending on who is talking with the class and the particular circumstances of the death. Ideally the class tutor will address the class if able to contain personal emotions, as the tutor usually knows the deceased student and peers as well. Counsellors can be present for additional support or to address the class if the tutor feels unable to do this.

I would like to extend my sympathy to all of you – both to '*John's*' classmates and the staff who taught him. I realise that you are all very shocked by this tragic news. I am sure many of you still cannot believe it has happened. It will take time to come to terms with '*John's*' death.

I appreciate that we cannot take away your pain, but I want you to know that your department and the college services will do all we can to help you through this difficult time. Some of you may feel overwhelmed, others may feel less affected, and others may re-experience past losses. Unfortunately, there are no shortcuts, and these feelings will have to be lived through. There are many ways in which people react to the death of a friend. You might experience a range of emotions including shock, numbness, anger, fear, regret etc. Physically you may be tearful, shaky, lose your concentration and motivation, feel like not eating or sleeping etc.

(Additional note if the death was by suicide) Any death is tragic, but a death by suicide is particularly difficult for us all. Many of you may feel confused, angry or guilty. You may have lots of questions – why, what could have been done, etc. Give these questions time and then talk them through with your friends, family and staff members here in college.

Department staff may attend the funeral with you and notify the Principal who will send a letter of condolence to the family.

In dealing with your loss you may wish to:

- 1. Talk with your classmates/tutors and your families about your feelings
- 2. Meet individually with a Counsellor in college.
- 3. Meet individually with a Learning Mentor who can provide a listening ear.
- 4. Have a group appointment with a counsellor if there is a group of you who were particularly close to '*John*'. I am happy to facilitate this.
- 5. Make a memorial card/poem to your deceased friend and/or family of the deceased.
- 6. Seek help from outside agencies such as CRUISE, Papyrus or <u>www.uk-sobs.org.uk</u> (Survivors of Bereavement by Suicide)

Further information, guidance and support regarding student suicide can also be found in 'Building suicide-safer schools and Colleges' on the college intranet here

## Appendix 5 Advice for staff following a death by suicide

After the death of a student, staff members can help classmates process the information and cope with their emotions. Although you may feel inadequate and worry that you may say something wrong, by trying to understand what a student is feeling, a valuable genuineness is evoked and usually appreciated. It is helpful to draw on your own experiences of death and loss. If you have concerns about a student or group of students, please contact the Student Counselling Service or Safeguarding Manager.

**Respect the family wishes regarding the death.** One family may refuse to label the death as a suicide, while another family will find it acceptable to refer to their child's struggles with depression. If you are unsure about the wishes of the family, please try to clarify these e.g. with the curriculum manager.

**Listen, care and do not be alarmed by tears.** Students, like most people, will benefit from discussing their thoughts and concerns. This dialogue is a healthy beginning for grieving.

**Minimise hysteria by maintaining a stable college environment.** In addition to being professional and calm, do not use dramatic exaggerated or sensational language that will inflame a situation.

**Ensure that all information given to students is honest, factual and clear.** This honesty works to build up trust. It is hoped that if students need support they will be more likely to feel they can ask for it.

**Use the word 'suicide' when discussing the death.** It is best to acknowledge the death honestly for what it is, rather than using euphemisms. You cannot put the idea of suicide in someone's head just using the word.

#### Avoid providing simple explanations or glorifying the deceased student.

Suicide is a complex event with many motivating factors, usually including mental illness. When possible, it is more useful to acknowledge the deceased's achievements and problems (without divulging confidential information).

**Emphasise that suicide is not a good choice for dealing with problems.** Unfortunately, suicide will always be an option, but staff members can help students see other ways out of their problems.

**Reinforce the reality that death is a permanent solution to temporary problems.** A romantic image of suicide may blur the realisation that death is forever, while problems can be dealt with and solved.

Remind students that support and help are available in the college and in the wider community. Although their problems may be perceived as overwhelming, students need to be reassured that people who love them and professionals are available to help them tackle serious issues.

Watch for students who seem to be affected beyond the 'normal' grieving intensity and duration. The suicide of a classmate may be a trigger event for students who are experiencing mental illness or who have a history of distress themselves. Seeing how the bereaved student is missed and eulogised may create dangerous allure for a potential copycat suicide.

**Do not respond to media enquiries and direct journalists to the Principal's office.** Out of respect for the grieving family, and as a form of self-protection, encourage students not to speak to the media about the death. (In previous crisis situations elsewhere, upset students made comments to the press that they later regretted. This made their grieving process more complicated and traumatic).

#### Take care of yourself

The death of a student can be upsetting for everyone involved. Please look after yourself, talk with colleagues and seek support as needed.

# Appendix 6 – Additional measures and considerations in the event of campus closures (e.g. due to further COVID-19 outbreaks).

There have been significant changes within our setting in response to the outbreak and enforced lock downs. All college campuses are now fully open, in line with Government guidance. This annex sets out some of the adjustments that must be put back into place in the event of any future campus closure.

Despite any necessary changes to operating practices, Wirral Met's Safeguarding, Protection & Promoting the Welfare of Children and Adults at Risk Policy is fundamentally the same: students always come first, staff should respond robustly to safeguarding concerns and contact the Safeguarding Manager in line with our established safeguarding procedure.

In the event of a campus closure, arrangements are in place for students to access remote and on-line learning, similarly for staff to be able to work from home. All support services to students remain in place, albeit remotely, and incorporates pastoral mentor support, mental health, safeguarding, counselling and specialist learning support through specialist support tutors. Closure of the campuses will be reviewed regularly and in line with Government guidance. All students who fall into a recognised vulnerable group, have an EHCP or are under statutory process with children's social care must be identified and appropriate support mechanisms put in place, inclusive of regular communication with allocated social workers and virtual schools where appropriate, plus access to on-site learning by exception and in line with government and public health guidance.

#### **Reporting arrangements**

The college arrangements continue in line with our Safeguarding, Protection & Promoting the Welfare of Children and Adults at Risk Policy.

The Safeguarding Manager is: Lorraine Jones; 07904016154; <a href="mailto:lorrainejones@wmc.ac.uk">lorrainejones@wmc.ac.uk</a>

The Designated Safeguarding Lead is: Ste Bailey; 07827983488; stebailey@wmc.ac.uk

The Assistant Safeguarding Managers are: Dawn Griffiths: 0151 551 7435; 07990592134; dawngriffiths@wmc.ac.uk Sarah Wilson: 0151 551 7035: 07852000983; sarahwilson@wmc.ac.uk

The Deputy Designated Managers are:

Karen Christian; 07852000990; <u>Karenchristian@wmc.ac.uk</u> Paul Crawford: 07762134709; paulcrawford@wmc.ac.uk Phil Jones: 07848147403: phillipjones@wmc.ac.uk Chris Carter: 07983347274; <u>Christinecarter@wmc.ac.uk</u> Kevin Roberts 0151 5517952; <u>kevinroberts@wmc.ac.uk</u> Ella Tsui-Lau: 0151 5517417; <u>ellatsui-lau@wmc.ac.uk</u> Kevin Williams 0151 5517411; kevinwilliams@wmc.ac.uk The college's approach ensures the Safeguarding Manager, Assistant Safeguarding Manager, DSL, or a deputy safeguarding lead is always available during the college's hours of operation.

Staff will continue to follow the Safeguarding, Protection and Promoting the Welfare of Children and Adults at Risk procedure and advise the safeguarding manager or deputy immediately about concerns they have about any student, whether in college or not. COVID-19 means a need for increased vigilance due to the pressures on services, families and young people, rather than a reduction in our standards.

Children's services may be affected by the impact of the virus on staff and an increased demand for services. Where a student is at risk of significant harm there may be a need to be persistent in referring concerns to the local authority.

The arrangements for contacting children's services are: contact Integrated Front Door (IFD) 0151 606 2008 for under 18's

For 18+ adults at risk contact Wirral Community NHS Trust: Single Point of Access 514 2222

Should a student in the college's view be at risk of significant harm and local agencies are not able to respond, the college will immediately follow the safeguarding children partnership escalation procedure.

#### Identifying vulnerability

The most vulnerable students must be identified, and contact made with appropriate social workers, lead professionals and key workers to notify them of the move to remote and on line learning.

This includes our students who have child looked after status, care leavers, students who are subject of child protection or child in need plan, under Team Around the Family, early help/targeted support, students estranged from parents and living in alternative accommodation, young carers and students who have an EHCP in place.

Students will receive regular contact through their allocated pastoral support mentor, mental health worker, specialist support tutor and/or their personal tutors as appropriate and in line with their individual needs. The Safeguarding Manager and Assistant Safeguarding Managers will maintain contact with allocated social workers, Independent Reviewing Officers, Virtual School and other key professionals as required.

NB Contact will be made remotely through telephone calls, text messages or emails by default, and in-person onsite by exception and in line with Government and Public Health advice.

Staff will continue to log contacts via Pro-Monitor and raise any safeguarding concerns by instigating the safeguarding procedures and contacting the safeguarding manager or another designated manager in her absence.

#### Staff will be aware of increased risk

The pressures on students and their families at this time are significant. There will be heightened awareness of family pressures through being contained in a small area, poverty, and financial or health anxiety. These areas should be considered in the setting of any work for students to undertake at home.

Staff will be aware of the mental health of both students and their parents and carers and make referrals to the College Mental Health Workers (for students) accordingly. If staff feel that a student is at risk of significant harm they should inform the Safeguarding Manager about any concerns.

The Department for Education have produced guidance to support parents: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-guidance-on-supporting-children-and-young-peoples-mental-health-and-wellbeing/guidance-for-parents-and-carers-on-supporting-children-and-young-peoples-mental-health-and-wellbeing-during-the-coronavirus-covid-19outbreak</u>

#### Child on child abuse

We recognise the potential for abuse to go on between young people, especially in the context of a college closure. Our staff will remain vigilant to the signs of peer-on-peer abuse, including those between students who are not currently attending our provision

#### **Risk online**

Student will be using the internet more during this period. The college may also use online approaches to deliver training or support. Staff will be aware of the signs and signals of cyberbullying and other risks online and apply the same child-centred safeguarding practices as when students are learning at the college.

The college continues to ensure appropriate filters and monitors are in place. Our governing body will review arrangements to ensure they remain appropriate. Staff have discussed the risk that professional boundaries could slip during this exceptional period and been reminded of the college's code of conduct and importance of using college systems to communicate with children and their families.

Students accessing remote learning receive guidance on keeping safe online and know how to raise concerns with the college, Childline, the UK Safer Internet Centre and CEOP.

It is extremely important that professional boundaries do not slip during this exceptional period and protocols for online working have been issued to staff involved in live-streaming of lessons.

#### Allegations or concerns about staff

With such different arrangements in place students could be at greater risk of abuse from staff or online abuse. We remind all staff to maintain the view that 'it could happen here' and

to immediately report any concern, no matter how small, to either the Safeguarding Manager (Lorraine Jones), Designated Safeguarding Lead (Ste Bailey) or HR. Any allegations will be dealt with in line with our usual policy.

#### New staff or volunteers

All new starters must have an online induction. They must complete the online Safeguarding, Protection and Promoting the Welfare of Children and Adults At Risk training, read the Guidance for Safer Working Practice with Children and Adults at Risk, and complete the on line KCSiE Quiz.

The Safeguarding Manager will ensure new starters know who to contact if worried about a student and ensure they are familiar with the Safeguarding Procedures